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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Mount Belknap Grange building is a 2-1/2 story clapboarded structure with a 
gable roof and a low stone foundation, standing at the intersection of two roads 
within the Gilford Village Historic District. Attached to the north elevation 
of the main structure is a wooden gable-roofed wing which is 2-1/2 stories high 
at its intersection with the main building and 1-1/2 stories high at its northern 
end. The west gable end of the main building, facing Belknap Mountain Road, 
is treated as the facade. It has two doors and two store windows on the first 
floor beneath a porch roof (the door on the left opening onto a stairway to the 
second floor), three symmetrically placed windows on the second story, and a single 
window in the attic. The southern (side) elevation, facing Potter Hill Road, has 
two windows on the first floor and three above. The east (rear) elevation has 
two windows on each floor, .offset toward the south to accommodate a stairhall which 
rises inside the north wall of the building; there is a single attic window in 
the gable. The exterior detailing of the main building is characteristic of the 
Greek Revival style. Corner boards are widened and provided with moulded capitals 
to form pilasters. The sides of the building have deep wooden entablatures above 
the pilasters, while the gable ends have wide frieze boards beneath boldly pro­ 
jecting raking cornices. Window sash (except for the two large 2/2 store windows) 
are 6/6 and have square-edged casings and slightly projecting ovolo caps. A 
single-flue brick chimney rises through the ridge near the east (rear) wall of 
the building.

The 2-1/2 story wing assumed its present form in 1928 and was designed to harmonize 
with the style of the main building, having square-edged window casings, 6/6 
sash, and a strongly projecting cornice. The 1-1/2 story extension of the wing 
has simpler detailing, yet is coherent with the other portions of the structure.

Original Appearance: Except for such minor changes as the addition of the porch 
roof (which appears to date from the late nineteenth century), the Mount Belknap 
Grange building seems to have retained its original appearance until after 1909. 
Grange records indicate that in that year, when the Grange purchased the structure 
from John B. Morrill, son of the builder, the lower floor of the building remained 
a store, the second floor was an open storeroom, and the wing on the north was a 
one-story wood shed and horse shed. A photograph of the structure in this con­ 
dition was published in the Granite Monthly magazine in 1898. After purchasing 
the building, the Grange divided the first floor into two rooms, using the front 
as a dining room and the back as a kitchen. In 1916, they installed a furnace in 
the back room. In 1928 the north wing was enlarged to two stories to provide new 
kitchen space on the first floor and an anteroom and regalia room above. At the 
same time the furnace was moved to the building's cellar and the dining room and 
kitchen were again made into a single room.

In the early 1950s the one-story wing at the far north was converted from a shed 
into a room for the Junior Grange, the kitchen was modernized, a fire escape was 
provided from the second-fllor anteroom, and all exterior doors were rehung to 
open outward.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Mount Belknap Grange building is a well-preserved example of a mid-nineteenth 
century country store with good Greek Revival detailing. As store and post office, 
and later as Grange hall, the building has played an important role in the life of 
a typical small New Hampshire village.

Architecture: The Mount Belknap Grange building is a well-preserved example of a 
rural commercial structure in the Greek Revival style. It is contemporary with many 
of the nearby structures of the small village of Gilford, and its architectural 
features relate closely to those of many of its neighbors.

Commerce: The Mount Belknap Grange building was constructed in the late 1850s as a 
store. According to the unpublished reminiscences of Alvah Folsom Hunter of Gilford,

about 1857 or T 58 a third store building was erected in the 
village, on the edge of the millyard and directly opposite 
Mr. Munsey's store; it was built by Mr. [John J.] Morrill for 
a Levi B. Thompson & Son, who had been keeping a general 
store in Topsham, Maine, but being New Hampshire men they 
longed to get back to New Hampshire. This store never became 
very popular and wasn't profitable from the start, it was 
discontinued soon after the close of the Civil War and the 
remaining stock auctioned off. The building is now [1926] 
owned and occupied by the local Grange. 1

Although the building had a short history as a store, it retained its original form 
throughout the nineteenth century and later served for many years as the Gilford post 
office.

^Alvah Folsom Hunter, "A New Hampshire Boyhood," unpublished typescript in the New 
Hampshire Historical Society library, Chapter 3, pp. 9-10. Cf. Chapter 4, p. 5. 
The story that the structure was originally the store of Capt. Benjamin Weeks, Jr., 
seems to have appeared first about 1962 in Hector L. Bolduc, The Gilford Story (n.p., 
n.d.), p. 33. Bolduc writes, "Benjamin Weeks' emporium was in the present-day Grange 
Hall and when he went out of business, his stock was auctioned. Later, Levi Thompson 
had a market at the same site."
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